
For requests for further information 
Contact:  Cherry Foreman 
Tel:       01270 686463 
E-Mail:    cherry.foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk  with any apologies 

  
 

Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday 12th August 2014 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Committee Suite 1,Westfields, Middlewich Road, 
Sandbach CW11 1HZ 

 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. Part 2 
items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons indicated on the 
agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 

 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence 

 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is 

allocated for members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relating 
to the work of the body in question.  Individual members of the public may speak 
for up to 5 minutes but the Chairman or person presiding will decide how the 
period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned where there are a 
number of speakers. Members of the public are not required to give notice to use 
this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’ notice is 
encouraged. 
 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at 
least three clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question 
with that notice. This will enable an informed answer to be given. 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

4. Bollington War Memorial, Bollington  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To consider a request to transfer Bollington War Memorial by way of 125 year 

lease to Bollington Town Council as part of the Local Service Delivery -Transfer 
and Devolutions to Town and Parish Councils process 
 

5. Congleton Community Garden, Congleton  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
 To consider a request to transfer Congleton Community Garden by way of 125 

year lease to Congleton Town Council as part of the Local Service Delivery -
Transfer and Devolutions to Town and Parish Councils process 
 



   

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

 
Date of Meeting: 

 
12th August 2014 

Report of: Property Services Manager 
Subject/Title: Bollington War Memorial, Bollington 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Peter Raynes 

 
                                                             
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To consider a request from Bollington Town Council to transfer 

Bollington War Memorial, Palmerston Street, Bollington, Cheshire, SK10 
5PZ (shown edged red on the attached plan) by way of 125 year lease 
as part of the Local Service Delivery -Transfer and Devolutions to Town 
and Parish Councils process. 

 
2.0      Recommendations 
 
2.1 Subject to the response to the public space advertisements referred to in 

paragraph 8.3, to transfer by way of 125 year lease Bollington War 
Memorial, Palmerston Street, Bollington, Cheshire, SK10 5PZ (shown 
edged red on the attached plan) to Bollington Town Council on the terms 
stated in 3.3 and other terms to be agreed by the Property Services 
Manager.  

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 On 5th September 2011 it was decided by the Cabinet that a number of 

properties (Appendix A properties) should be transferred to the Town or 
Parish Council for the area in which the properties are located as a first 
phase of the Local Service Delivery -Transfer and Devolutions to Town 
and Parish Councils process and that certain other properties (Appendix 
B properties) be considered for transfer with the decisions as to whether 
to sell being delegated to the relevant portfolio holder(s).   

 
3.2 It was reported to Cabinet that every transfer or lease would be on the 

following terms namely that:  
 

• The transfer/ lease would protect community use of the asset. 
 

• The transfer/ lease would take place for a nominal value (£1) and the 
Town Council will be wholly responsible for the service and the asset 
save insofar as the Council has residual legal responsibilities under 
contracts or legislative provisions. 
   

• If allowing change of use, the agreement would  secure an overage 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



payment for the Council if there is a future planning permission which 
enhances the value of the asset or the Town  Council  sells  the asset 
within an 15 year period with increase in value/ proceeds of sale 
returning to  Cheshire East on a reducing sliding scale  

 
And Cabinet resolved that delegated authority be given to identified 
officers to finalise standard terms for all the transfers. Standard heads 
of terms were subsequently approved by the relevant officers and the 
Portfolio Holder for Places and Strategic Capacity. 
 

3.3  Bollington War Memorial was neither an Appendix A nor an Appendix B 
property but has since been identified as an appropriate asset to be 
devolved to the Town Council. The 125 year lease to Bollington Town 
Council will be based upon the standard heads of terms and, as it will 
prohibit a change of use of the War Memorial, no overage agreement 
will be required. 

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1  Bollington 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Cllr Peter Hayes 
 Cllr Bill Livesley 
 
6.0 Policy Implications  
 
6.1  The 125 year lease is in line with the Council’s policy of transfer and 

devolution of assets to Town and Parish Councils for a nominal value. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 The impact of the transfer to Bollington Town Council would have 

minimal financial impact on Cheshire East Council (CEC) budget in  
14-15 as there are currently minimal operational costs. 

   
7.2 Once the Memorial have transferred, then all Repair, Maintenance, 

Utility and Rates become the responsibility of the Town Council and that 
they would be directly liable. 

 
8.0       Legal Implications  
 
8.1 The Council has no power to dispose of property by a freehold transfer 

unless it secures the best consideration reasonably obtainable or it has 
Secretary of State consent. Under the Local Government Act 1972 
General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 the Secretary of State gave 
general consent to  disposals for less than best consideration if: 

 
(a) The disposing authority considers that the purpose for which the land 

is to be disposed of is likely to contribute to the achievement of 

Page 2



any one or more of the following objects of the whole or any part of 
its area, or all or any persons resident or present in its area:  
a. The promotion or improvement of economic well-being; 
b. The promotion or improvement of social well-being; 
c. The promotion or improvement of environmental well-being;  

 
(b)  the difference between the unrestricted value of the land to be  

disposed of and the consideration for the disposal does not exceed 
£2m; and  

 
(c) All other conditions and requirements of the Consent are satisfied.  

 
8.2 In transferring assets the Council must behave prudently to fulfil its 

fiduciary duty 
 
8.3 As there is open space within the land outlined red on the attached plan, 

then it will be necessary to advertise the potential disposal of the War 
Memorial under the provision of the Local Government Act. If objections 
to the disposal are made, the Portfolio Holder will decide whether the 
lease will be granted. 

 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 The 125 year lease will prohibit changes of use of the War Memorial. 
 
10.0 Background Information 
 
10.1 The purpose of this request is to facilitate a grant application to Heritage 

Lottery Fund to install two Local Kerrage Stone plinths opposite the War 
Memorial within the grounds of the Garden. 

 

10.2 On 12 December 2013 Councillor Michael Jones released a press 
release stating that £100k would be set aside for the restoration and 
refurbishment of war memorials.  Bollington Town Council applied for 
funding but as CEC owned the memorial, CEC could not approve the 
application.  At a Strategic Outcomes Portfolio Holder meeting on  
28 April 2014, it was agreed that CEC should look into transferring the 
memorial following the Town Councils request and reconsider the grant 
application following the next community grants deadline of 27 June. 

 
11 Access to Information 
 

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by   
contacting the report writer: 

 
  Name: Lee Beckett 

 Designation: Valuer 
            Tel No: 01270 686122  
             Email:  lee.beckett@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



River Dean

143.9m

158.8m

142.3m

War Meml

Garage

Shelter

El Sub Sta

Playground

Cour
tDean

WATER

SM

Dr
ain

DRIVE

BROW

STREET

PALMERSTON STREET

BEESTON

MEW
S

HAZELHURST

104
FO

UNDRY ST

Coach House
Carter Bench House

JOHN ST

Ha
ilw

oo
d H

ou
se

CHURCH

11

1

8

15

110

9

2

4910

38

79a

7
4

35

24

1to
10

21

23

35a

10
2

13

12

26

53

5

3

6

58

2

8

11

9

8

1

8

9

1

1

2

24

´
Plan Ref:
Date:
Scale:

Bollington Memorial

1:1,250

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
OS Licence 0100049045. 2013.

PM 19645
Bollington  Memorial

3rd June 2014
at A4

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



                   

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Member for Finance 
 

 
Date of Meeting: 

 
12th August 2014 

Report of: Property Services Manager 
Subject/Title: Congleton Community Garden, Congleton 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Peter Raynes 

 
                                               
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To consider a request from Congleton Town Council to transfer 

Congleton Community Garden, High Street / Lawton Street, Congleton, 
Cheshire, CW12 3AE (shown edged red on the attached plan) by way of 
125 year lease as part of the Local Service Delivery -Transfer and 
Devolutions to Town and Parish Councils process. 

 
2.0      Recommendations 
 
2.1 Subject to the response to the public space advertisements referred to in 

8.3, to transfer by way of 125 year lease Congleton Community Garden, 
High Street / Lawton Street, Congleton, Cheshire, CW12 3AE (shown 
edged red on the attached plan and referred to in this Report as the 
Garden) to Congleton Town Council on the terms stated in 3.3 and other 
terms to be agreed by the Property Services Manager.  

 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 On 5th September 2011 it was decided by the Cabinet that a number of 

properties (Appendix A properties) should be transferred to the Town or 
Parish Council for the area in which the properties are located as a first 
phase of the Local Service Delivery -Transfer and Devolutions to Town 
and Parish Councils process and that certain other properties (Appendix 
B properties) be considered for transfer with the decisions as to whether 
to sell being delegated to the relevant portfolio holder(s).   

 
3.2 It was reported to Cabinet that every transfer or lease would be on the 

following terms namely that:  
 

• The transfer/ lease would protect community use of the asset. 
 

• The transfer/ lease would take place for a nominal value (£1) and the 
Town Council will be wholly responsible for the service and the asset 
save insofar as the Council has residual legal responsibilities under 
contracts or legislative provisions. 
   

• If allowing change of use, the agreement would  secure an overage 

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



payment for the Council if there is a future planning permission which 
enhances the value of the asset or the Town  Council  sells  the asset 
within an 15 year period with increase in value/ proceeds of sale 
returning to  Cheshire East on a reducing sliding scale  

 
And Cabinet resolved that delegated authority be given to identified 
officers to finalise standard terms for all the transfers. Standard heads 
of terms were subsequently approved by the relevant officers and the 
Portfolio Holder for Places and Strategic Capacity. 

 
3.3  The Garden was neither an Appendix A nor an Appendix B property but 

has since been identified as an appropriate asset to be devolved to the 
Town Council. The 125 year lease to Congleton Town Council will be 
based upon the standard heads of terms and, as it will prohibit a change 
of use of the Garden, no overage agreement will be required. 

 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1  Congleton West 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Cllr Gordon Baxendale 
 Cllr Roland Domleo 
 Cllr David Topping 
 
6.0 Policy Implications  
 
6.1  The 125 year lease is in line with the Council’s policy of transfer and 

devolution of assets to Town and Parish Councils for a nominal value. 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 The impact of the transfer to Congleton Town Council would have 

minimal financial impact on Cheshire east Council budget in 14-15 as 
there are currently minimal operational costs. 

   
7.2 Once the Gardens have transferred, then all Repair, Maintenance, Utility 

and Rates become the responsibility of the Town Council and that they 
would be directly liable. 

 
8.0        Legal Implications  
 
8.1 The Council has no power to dispose of property by a freehold transfer 

unless it secures the best consideration reasonably obtainable or it has 
Secretary of State consent. Under the Local Government Act 1972 
General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 the Secretary of State gave 
general consent to  disposals for less than best consideration if: 

 
(a) The disposing authority considers that the purpose for which the land 

is to be disposed of is likely to contribute to the achievement of 

Page 8



any one or more of the following objects of the whole or any part of 
its area, or all or any persons resident or present in its area:  
a. The promotion or improvement of economic well-being; 
b. The promotion or improvement of social well-being; 
c. The promotion or improvement of environmental well-being;  

 
(b)  the difference between the unrestricted value of the land to be  

disposed of and the consideration for the disposal does not exceed 
£2m; and  

 
(c) All other conditions and requirements of the Consent are satisfied.  

 
8.2 In transferring assets the Council must behave prudently to fulfil its 

fiduciary duty 
 
8.3 As there is open space within the land outlined red on the attached plan, 

then it will be necessary to advertise the potential disposal of the Garden 
under the provision of the Local Government Act. The adverts have 
been placed in the press and the period for representations to be made 
will expire on 31st July after which, if objections to the disposal are 
made, the Portfolio Holder will decide whether the lease will be granted. 

 
9.0 Risk Management  
 
9.1 The 125 year lease will prohibit changes of use of the Garden. 
 
10.0 Background Information 
 
10.1 The purpose of this request from Congleton Town Council is to facilitate 

a grant application to the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) to refurbish the 
Cenotaph and Community Garden in Congleton. 

 
11 Access to Information 
 

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by   
contacting the report writer: 

 
  Name: Lee Beckett 

 Designation: Valuer 
            Tel No: 01270 686122  
             Email:  lee.beckett@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



8

St Peter's Church

14

Library

Hall

Offices

Community Garden

Town

Garage

Timber88
.4m

Club

Museum

MARKET SQUARE

92.1m

87.8m

90.1m

87.2m

87.7m

94.5m

Bank

Memorial

Highland View

Council Offices

Ca
pit

ol 
Wa

lk

Church

Police Station

Track

Allotment Gardens

PH

Car Park

Sunny Bank

Surgery

Day Nursery

COLEHILL BANK

TANNER STREET

PARK STREET

SQ
UA

RE

HIGH STREET

BANK STREET

KIN
SE

Y S
TR

EE
T

Fa
cto

ry

5

9
6

7

26

16

21

13

15

47

12
28

19

10

17

1

24

2

Centre

20

16b

28a 30 to 34

Posts

15
a

1 to 7

LB

18

Post

4

52

Wellbank Court

36

25

Un
d

3

Well

ALBERT PLACE
BA

RK
 ST

RE
ET

Dean House

Cottage

House

TCB

(Path)

Meml

5

14

1

Bank

5

24

25

2

8

4

16

PH

24

16

2

TCB

15

1

13

2

8

1
6

3

13

12

5

36

6

7

2

16

26

10

14
15

Car Park

2

5
9

Garage

Hall

10

2

6

1

7

21

2

PH

2

4

´
Plan Ref:
Date:
Scale:

Congleton Community Garden, Lawton Street, Congleton

1:1,250

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may 
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
OS Licence 0100049045. 2013.

PM 19902
Community Garden

4th June 2014
at A4

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Bollington War Memorial, Bollington
	Bollington War Memorial Plan

	5 Congleton Community Garden, Congleton
	Community Garden Plan


